

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 7 2nd Revised Sheet No. 7A

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 7 1st Revised Sheet No. 7A

For Missouri Retail Service Area

Deleted: KANSAS CITY POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

Deleted: First

Deleted: Original

Residential Time of Use – Three Period  
Schedule RTOU

**PRICING PERIODS**

Pricing periods are established in Central Time year-round. The hours for each pricing period are as follows:

- On-Peak: 4pm-8pm, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays
- Super Off-Peak: 12am-6am every day
- Off-Peak: All other hours

Holidays are New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.

**MINIMUM**

Minimum Monthly Bill:

- 1) Customer Charge; plus
- 2) Any additional charges for line extensions, if applicable.

**SUMMER AND WINTER SEASONS**

For determination of Seasonal periods, the four (4) summer months shall be defined as the four (4) monthly billing periods of June through September. The eight (8) winter months shall be defined as the eight (8) monthly billing periods of October through May. Customer bills for meter reading periods including one or more days in both seasons will reflect the usage for each period occurring in each season.

Deleted: The Summer Season is four consecutive months, beginning and effective May 16 and ending September 15, inclusive. The Winter Season is eight consecutive months, beginning and effective September 16 and ending May 15.

Deleted: number of days in each season

**DEMAND SIDE INVESTMENT MECHANISM RIDER**

Subject to Schedule DSIM filed with the State Regulatory Commission.

**FUEL ADJUSTMENT**

Fuel Adjustment Clause, Schedule FAC, shall be applicable to all customer billings under this schedule.

**TAX ADJUSTMENT**

Tax Adjustment Schedule TA shall be applicable to all customer billings under this schedule.

**REGULATIONS**

Subject to Rules and Regulations filed with the State Regulatory Commission.

Issued: December 2, 2022 Effective: January 1, 2023  
Issued by: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

Deleted: March 6, 2019

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 4

Deleted: April 5, 2019

**EVERGY MISSOURI METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

P.S.C. MO. No. 7 10th Revised Sheet No. 8A

**Deleted:** Ninth

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 7 9th Revised Sheet No. 8A

**Deleted:** Eighth

For Missouri Retail Service Area

Residential Time Of Day Service (FROZEN)  
Schedule RTOD

**MINIMUM**

Minimum Monthly Bill:

- (i) \$12.00 per customer; plus
- (ii) Any additional charges for line extensions.

**Deleted:** 15.96

**SUMMER AND WINTER SEASONS**

**Deleted:** WINTER SEASON

For determination of Seasonal periods, the four (4) summer months shall be defined as the four (4) monthly billing periods of June through September. The eight (8) winter months shall be defined as the eight (8) monthly billing periods of October through May. Customer bills for meter reading periods including one or more days in both seasons will reflect the usage for each period occurring in each season.

**Deleted:** Eight consecutive months, spanning the period October 1 to May 31 each year.

**SUMMER ON-PEAK AND OFF-PEAK PERIODS**

**Deleted:** SUMMER SEASON¶  
Four consecutive months, spanning the period June 1 to September 30 each year.¶

On-peak hours are defined to be the hours between 1 p.m. and 7 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding week-day holidays during the Summer Season. Off-Peak hours are defined to be all other hours during the Summer Season. Week-day holidays are Independence Day and Labor Day.

**DEMAND SIDE INVESTMENT MECHANISM RIDER**

Subject to Schedule DSIM filed with the State Regulatory Commission.

**FUEL ADJUSTMENT:**

Fuel Adjustment Clause, Schedule FAC, shall be applicable to all customer billings under this schedule.

**TAX ADJUSTMENT**

Tax Adjustment Schedule TA shall be applicable to all customer billings under this schedule.

**REGULATIONS**

Subject to Rules and Regulations filed with the State Regulatory Commission.

Issued: December 2, 2022  
Issued by: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President

Effective: January 1, 2023  
1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

**Deleted:** November

**Deleted:** 2018

**Deleted:** December 6, 2018

# KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

P.S.C. MO. No. 7 1st Revised Sheet No. 31

Deleted: Original

Cancelling P.S.C. MO. No. 7  Original Sheet No. 31

Deleted: 6

Deleted: All previous sheets

For Missouri Retail Service Area

## PARALLEL GENERATION CONTRACT SERVICE Schedule PG

### AVAILABILITY:

Electric service is available under this schedule at points on the Company's existing distribution facilities located within its service area. This schedule is not available to customers for Resale or Time-Related Pricing electric service.

Deleted: Resale electric service will not be supplied under this schedule...

### APPLICABILITY:

Applicable to a "Qualifying Facility" who contracts for service supplied at one point of delivery where part or all of the electrical requirements of the Customer are provided by the Customer on the premises, and where the Customer's source of electricity is connected for parallel operation of the Customer's system with the system of the Company. "Qualifying Facility" shall mean a cogeneration facility or a small power production facility which is a qualifying facility as defined in Subpart B of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 (PURPA). The Company shall not be obligated to supply any electrical transformation and service facilities (except as modified under other terms and conditions with regard to metering equipment) in excess of those facilities required for an ordinary residential Customer using annual kilowatt-hours in an amount equal to the annual kilowatt-hours supplied by the Company to the Customer unless such Customer is served under the applicable General Service rate schedule. In no event shall the Company be obligated to supply transformation or service facilities in excess of those required to meet the Customer's maximum rate of energy receipt. This schedule is not applicable where the Customer's maximum capacity exceeds 100 kW.

### CHARACTER OF SERVICE:

Alternating current, 60 cycles, at the voltage and phase of the Company's established secondary distribution system immediately adjacent to the service location.

### BILLING AND PAYMENT:

The Company shall render a bill at approximately 30-day intervals for energy delivered to the Customer. Billing by the Company to the Customer shall be in accordance with the applicable Residential or General Service rate schedule.

Deleted: July 5, 1996

Deleted: 5

Deleted: July 9, 1996

Deleted: 4

Deleted: S. W. Catron

Deleted: 1201

Deleted: Walnut

Deleted: 6

DATE OF ISSUE: December 2, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: January 1, 2023

ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, Mo. 64105

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

P.S.C. MO. No. 7 ~~3rd~~ Revised Sheet No. 39E

**Deleted:** Second

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 7 ~~2nd~~ Revised Sheet No. 39E

**Deleted:** First

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**SOLAR SUBSCRIPTION RIDER**  
Schedule SSR

**Deleted:** PILOT

**Deleted:** SSP

9. Unsubscribed amounts will be determined monthly within the companies using the monthly subscriptions in place at the time of the allocation of costs for that company. Responsibility for any undersubscribed shares will be shared between shareholders and ratepayers.— The cost associated with any unsubscribed portion of Program Resources will not be included in the revenue requirement used to establish base rates if subscriptions cover at least 50 percent of Program Resources. If subscriptions cover less than 50 percent of Program Resources, then the cost associated with the unsubscribed portion below 50 percent of Program Resources will be included in the revenue requirement used to establish base rates.

**Deleted:** costs

**Deleted:** customers and

10. All time-related terms and periods referenced within the Rider will be applied consistently across the companies as appropriate and allowed by the respective individual tariffs for this program.

**Deleted:** with shareholders bearing 75% of the cost of any unsubscribed capacity and customers bearing the remaining 25%.

**FUEL ADJUSTMENT**

Fuel Adjustment Clause, Schedule FAC, shall be applicable to all customer billings under this schedule.

**TAX ADJUSTMENT**

Tax Adjustment Schedule TA shall be applicable to customer billings under this schedule.

**DEMAND-SIDE INVESTMENT MECHANISM RIDER (DSIM)**

Demand-Side Investment Mechanism Rider (DSIM) shall be applicable to customer billings under this schedule.

**REGULATIONS**

Subject to Rules and Regulations filed with the State Regulatory Commission.

Issued: December 2, 2022

Effective: January 1, 2023

**Deleted:** 5

Issued by: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President

1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

**Deleted:** 4

**Deleted:** November 6, 2018  
December 6, 2018 ¶

**KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY**

P.S.C. MO. No. 7 4th Revised Sheet No. 49P

Cancelling P.S.C. MO. No. 7 3rd Revised Sheet No. 49P

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**DEMAND SIDE INVESTMENT MECHANISM RIDER (Cycle 2)  
Schedule DSIM (Continued)**

**Net Margin Revenue Rates by Rate Class by Month & Earnings Opportunity Matrix:**

	January	February	March	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December
RES Margin less fuel	\$0.07460	\$0.07662	\$0.07824	\$0.08332	\$0.08230	\$0.12440	\$0.12720	\$0.12778	\$0.12765	\$0.07485	\$0.08468	\$0.08107
SGS Margin less fuel	\$0.06725	\$0.06744	\$0.06912	\$0.07279	\$0.07637	\$0.09959	\$0.09262	\$0.09120	\$0.09078	\$0.07222	\$0.07537	\$0.07078
MGS Margin less fuel	\$0.04380	\$0.04420	\$0.04542	\$0.04847	\$0.05182	\$0.07214	\$0.06748	\$0.06694	\$0.06668	\$0.04747	\$0.05041	\$0.04676
LGS Margin less fuel	\$0.02704	\$0.02727	\$0.02802	\$0.03012	\$0.03130	\$0.04397	\$0.04091	\$0.04114	\$0.03981	\$0.02777	\$0.03053	\$0.02845
LPS Margin less fuel	\$0.00795	\$0.01073	\$0.01059	\$0.01018	\$0.01032	\$0.01276	\$0.01102	\$0.01199	\$0.01154	\$0.00949	\$0.00982	\$0.00996

	January	February	March
RES Margin less fuel	\$0.07054	\$0.07461	\$0.07792
SGS Margin less fuel	\$0.07262	\$0.07434	\$0.07614
MGS Margin less fuel	\$0.04382	\$0.04470	\$0.04546
LGS Margin less fuel	\$0.02647	\$0.02757	\$0.02856
LPS Margin less fuel	\$0.01041	\$0.01169	\$0.01119

Proposed Metric	KCPL-Missouri						
	Payout rate	Payout unit	% of Target EO	KCPL 100% payout	KCPL Cap	Cap/100% Multiplier	Target @ 100%
Opower: criteria will be effective, prudent spend of budget	N/A		5.05%	\$375,000	\$375,000		
EE & Tstat MWh (Excl. Opower, DRI, & IEMF): criteria will be the cumulative of the 1st yr incremental MWh during the 3 year plan	\$8.31	\$/MWh	19.24%	\$1,429,121	\$1,857,857	130%	171,976.043
EE Coincident MW (Excl. Opower, DRI, Tstat, & IEMF): criteria will be cumulative of the 1st year MW reduction during the 3 year plan, coincident with system peak	\$114,741.01	\$/MW	52.83%	\$3,925,175	\$5,887,763	150%	34.209
Thermostat MW impact: criteria will be cumulative of the MW reduction during 3 year plan, coincident with system peak	\$91,941.81	\$/MW	15.14%	\$1,125,000	\$1,687,500	150%	12.236
DR Incentive (DRI) MW of Ramping (growth from year 1 planned to year 3 actual) (year 1 is 10 MW - KCP&L-MO and 20 MW in GMO)	\$75,000.00	\$/MW	5.05%	\$375,000	\$487,500	130%	5.000
Income Eligible Multi-Family (IEMF): criteria will be effective, prudent spend of budget	N/A		2.69%	\$200,000	\$200,000		
			100%	\$7,429,296	\$10,495,620		
Total Cap Including TD Adjustments					\$15,500,000		

- Note:
1. Targets based on cumulative savings at the meter
  2. The payout rate will be multiplied by the payout unit up to the maximum
  3. MWh & MW targets are rounded to the nearest kWh & kW
  4. Payout rate rounded to the nearest \$0.01

The Earnings Opportunity Matrix for Program Year 4 is contained in Exhibit B with the MEEIA Cycle 2 Extension Stipulation.

DATE OF ISSUE: December 2, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: January 1, 2023

ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

Formatted Table

Deleted: Third

Deleted: Second

Deleted:

Deleted: February 15 2019

Deleted: March 17, 2019

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 7 1st Revised Sheet No. 52  
 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 7 Original Sheet No. 52

Deleted: Original

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**ELECTRIC TRANSIT SERVICE  
Schedule ETS**

**AVAILABILITY**

Electric service is available under this schedule through one (1) meter point on the Company's existing distribution facilities. Single phase or if present at the location, three phase service is available at the secondary voltage of transformation facilities supplied from the Company's distribution system. At the Company's discretion, service may be provided through more than one metering point where it is economical for the Company to do so.

**APPLICABILITY**

To any non-residential customer using electric service for the exclusive use of charging electric public transit vehicles. The load served under this Schedule will be separately metered from all other commercial electrical loads and will be used exclusively for the purpose of charging electric transit vehicles. This Schedule allows other ancillary uses, limited to no more than 5 kW, that are specifically related to the provision of electric transit vehicle charging, such as area lighting.

**TERM OF SERVICE**

Service shall be provided for a fixed term of not less than one (1) year.

**CARBON FREE ENERGY OPTION**

Customers have the option to elect that all of the electricity under this schedule to be from carbon free resources. The Company, at its sole discretion, agrees to generate or purchase energy from carbon free sources and/or purchase and retire renewable energy credits in an amount at least equal to the level of service purchased under this tariff. The amount of carbon free energy available under this tariff shall be determined by the Company based on the amount of carbon free energy sources and renewable energy credits available to the Company.

**RATE FOR SERVICE**

A. Customer Charge (Per Month)		\$ <u>122.37</u>	
B. Facility Charge (Per kW of Billing Demand per month)		\$ <u>3.501</u>	
C. Energy Charge per Pricing Period (Per kWh)	Summer		Winter
	<u>Season</u>		<u>Season</u>
On-Peak Period	\$ <u>0.24281</u>		\$ <u>0.18936</u>
Off-Peak Period	\$ <u>0.04375</u>		\$ <u>0.03677</u>
D. Carbon Free Energy Option Charge (Per kWh)		\$ <u>0.00260</u>	

Deleted: 118.82

Deleted: 399

Deleted: 23576

Deleted: 18386

Deleted: 04248

Deleted: 03570

Deleted: 00250

Issued: December 2, 2022  
 Issued by: Darrin Ives, Vice President

Effective: January 1, 2023  
 1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

Deleted: March 1, 2022

Deleted: March 31, 2022

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 7 1st Revised Sheet No. 52A  
Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 7 Original Sheet No. 52A

Deleted: Original

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**ELECTRIC TRANSIT SERVICE  
Schedule ETS**

**MINIMUM MONTHLY BILL**

The Minimum Monthly Bill shall be equal to the sum of the Customer Charge and Facilities Charge.

**SEASONS**

~~For determination of Seasonal periods, the four (4) months shall be defined as the four (4) monthly billing periods of June through September. The eight (8) winter months shall be defined as the eight (8) monthly billing periods of October through May. Customer bills for meter reading periods including one or more days in both seasons will reflect the number of days in each season.~~

Deleted: The Summer Season is four consecutive months, beginning and effective May 16 and ending September 15 inclusive. The Winter Season is eight consecutive months, beginning and effective September 16 and ending May 15. Customer bills for meter reading periods including one or more days in both seasons will reflect the usage in each season. For determination of Seasonal periods, the four (4)

**PRICING PERIODS**

Pricing periods are established in Central Time year-round. The hours for each pricing period are as follows:

On-Peak: 6 a.m. - 6 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding  
Holidays Off- Peak Period: All other hours

**HOLIDAYS**

Holidays are New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.

**MONTHLY MAXIMUM DEMAND**

The Monthly Maximum Demand shall be the customer's maximum fifteen (15) minute integrated demand measured in kW during the current billing period.

**FACILITIES DEMAND**

Facilities Demand shall be equal to the highest Monthly Maximum Demands recorded in the last twelve (12) months including the current month. If there are less than eleven (11) previous billing periods, the determination will be made using all available previous billing periods.

**DEMAND SIDE INVESTMENT MECHANISM RIDER**

Subject to Schedule DSIM filed with the State Regulatory Commission.

**FUEL ADJUSTMENT**

Fuel Adjustment Clause, Schedule FAC, shall be applicable to all customer billings under this schedule.

**TAX ADJUSTMENT**

Tax Adjustment Schedule TA shall be applicable to all customer billings under this schedule.

**REGULATIONS**

Subject to Rules and Regulations filed with the State Regulatory Commission.

Issued: December 2, 2022  
Issued by: Darrin Ives, Vice President

Effective: January 1, 2023  
1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

Deleted: March 1, 2022

Deleted: March 31, 2022